








 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 60 (PEACE RIVER NORTH) 
 

10112 – 105 Avenue 
Fort St. John, BC  V1J  4S4 

 
Telephone:  (250) 262-6000 

Fax:  (250) 262-6048 
 
 
 
 

Board of Education 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A G E N D A      B O O K 
 
 

FOR THE 
 
 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
 
 

BOARD   ROOM  
 

MONDAY, JUNE 21, 2021 @ 6:30 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Regular Agenda:  June 21, 2021  Page 2 
 

OUR MISSION 
All our students will graduate, crossing the stage with dignity and grace. 
 
 
OUR VALUES 
The core values that guide the work of the school division are RESPECT, 
COMPASSION, HONESTY, RESPONSIBILITY, and RELATIONSHIPS. 

 
 
OUR STRATEGIES 
As a district, we are committed to FOUR OVER-ARCHING STRATEGIES: 
 
 DELIVERY OF EXCELLENT EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMMING  

 FOCUSSED ON STUDENT OUTCOMES 
  
 PROVISION OF ETHICAL LEADERSHIP FOCUSSED ON  

 RELATIONSHIPS AND CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT 
  
 EXEMPLARY MANAGEMENT PRACTISES FOCUSSED ON ALIGNING  

 RESOURCES FOR OPTIMAL RESULTS 
 

 ENGAGED GOVERNANCE FOCUSSED ON ADVOCACY,  
 ACCOUNTABILITY, AND COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIPS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



Regular Agenda:  June 21, 2021  Page 3 
 

 
 

THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 60 
 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
 

 MONDAY, JUNE 21, 2021 
 

6:30 P.M. 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
1.0 Call to Order 

 
Acknowledgement that today’s Board Meeting is being held within the traditional territory of 
the Dane Zaa and Treaty 8. 
 
Recognition of Indigenous Day 
 

 
2.0 Additions to the Agenda/Acceptance of the Agenda 
 
 
3.0  Presentations/Delegations 

 
 
4.0 Trustee Input (Celebrations) 
  

5.0 Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting, May 17, 2021 (pages 7-13) 
 

5.1 Approval of the Minutes 
 
5.2 Business Arising from the Minutes 

(See attached Action Item List for completed and ongoing items) 
 

 
6.0 Approval of Excerpts of the In Camera Board Meeting April 19, 2021 (page 14) 
 
 
7.0 Announcements and Reminders 

 
June 21 Indigenous Day 
June 23 Joint District Meeting (SD 59, 60 & 81) 4:00-5:30 p.m. Virtual 
June 24 Last Day for Students 
June 25 Hudson’s Hope Grad 
June 25 Administrative Day – Schools Close 
July 7-9 CSBA Conference (Virtual) 
August 29-30 Board Advance 
August 30 Board Meeting    5:00 p.m. Board Room 
September 7 School Open 
 
 

8.0 Senior Staff Reports 
 
 8.1 Superintendent’s Report (page 15-16) 
 
 8.2 Secretary-Treasurer’s Report (page 17) 
 
 
 



Regular Agenda:  June 21, 2021  Page 4 
 

9.0 Reports of Regular Committee of the Whole Meeting, June 7, 2021 (pages 18-20) 
 
 9.1 Approval of Minutes  
 
 
 9.2 Business Arising 

 (See attached Action Item List for completed and ongoing items) 
 

a) CSBA Conference Registration 
Chair Gilbert 

 
 
 9.3 Policy Committee – Trustee Evans (Attachment – Notes) 
 

a) Policy #4035- Public Interest Disclosure Act (PIDA) (Attachment) 
 Gilliss/ 
 THAT the Board of Education adopt Policy #4035 – Public Interest 
 Disclosure Act (PIDA) 
 

b) Policy #1003 – School Board Meeting Delegations (Attachment) 
 Scott-Moncrieff/ 
 THAT the Board of Education adopt Policy #1003 – School Board 
 Meeting Delegations 
 

c) Policy #1001 – School Board Duties and Authority (Attachment) 
 Gilliss/ 

THAT the Board of Education adopt the deletion of Policy 1001 – School 
Board Duties and Authority 

 
d) Policy #1002 – Board Member Authority (Attachment) 

 Snow/ 
THAT the Board of Education adopt the deletion of Policy 1002 – Board 
Member Authority 
 

e) Policy #1001- Roles and Responsibilities of the Board of Trustees 
 (Attachment) 
 First/ 
 THAT the Board of Education put forward Policy #1001 - Roles and 
 Responsibilities of the Board of Trustees for Notice of Motion 
 

f) Policy #1010 – Code of Conduct (Attachment) 
 First/ 
 THAT the Board of Education put forward the deletion of Policy #1010 - 
 Code of Conduct for Notice of Motion 
 

g) Policy #2001 – School Fees (Attachment) 
 First/ 

THAT the Board of Education put forward Policy #2001 - School Fees for 
Notice of Motion 

 
h) Policy #2004 – Student Admission & Choice (Attachment) 

 First/ 
THAT the Board of Education put forward Policy #2004-  Student Admission 
& Choice for Notice of Motion 

 
 
10.0 Other Reports 

 
10.1 BCSTA – Trustee Evans 
 

 10.2 BCPSEA – Trustee Campbell 
 
 10.3 Board Pro-D Committee – Chair Gilbert 



Regular Agenda:  June 21, 2021  Page 5 
 

11.0 2021-2022 Annual Budget (Attachments) 
 

11.1 THAT in accordance with Section 68(4) of the School Act, all three readings of the 
 2021-2022 Annual Budget be given at this meeting. 

 
11.2 THAT the Board adopt the First Reading of Annual Budget Bylaw 2021-2022  

 
11.3 THAT the Second and Third Reading be read in short form 

 
11.4 THAT the Board adopt the Second Reading of Annual Budget Bylaw 2021-
 2022 

 
11.5 THAT the Board adopt the Third and Final Reading of Annual Budget Bylaw 
 2021-2022. 

 
 
12.0 Capital Plan Bylaw No. 2021/22-CPSD60-01 (Attachments)  

  
12.1 THAT in accordance with Section 68(4) of the School Act, all three readings of the 

 Capital Bylaw No. 2021/22-CPSD60-01 be given at this meeting 
 

12.2 THAT the Board adopt the First Reading of Capital Bylaw No. 2021/22-CPSD60-01 
 

12.3 THAT the Second and Third Reading be read in short form 
 
12.4 THAT the Board adopt the Second Reading of Capital Bylaw No. 2021/22-
 CPSD60-01 
 
12.5 THAT the Board adopt the Third and Final Reading of Capital Bylaw No. 2021/22-

 CPSD60-01 
  
 
13.0 Five-Year Capital Plan 2022-2023 (Attachment) 

 Recommended Motion:  That the Board of Education approve the attached 2022-2023 
 Capital Plan 

 
 
14.0 2021-2022 Annual Facilities Grant Submission (Attachment)  
 Recommended Motion:  THAT the Board of Education approve the attached Annual 
 Facilities Grant Submission 
 
 
15.0 Correspondence 

 
 

16.0 Unfinished Business 
 

16.1 Partner Group Meetings (SD 59,60 & 81) Update 
 Chair Gilbert 
 

 
17.0 New Business 

 
17.1 Electronic Board Meetings for 2021-2022 School Year 
 Chair Gilbert 
 

 
18.0 PRNTA Update – Michele Wiebe, President 
 
 
19.0 CUPE Local #4653 Update – Jennie Copeland, President 



Regular Agenda:  June 21, 2021  Page 6 
 

 
 
20.0 District Parent Advisory Council (DPAC) Report – Cassandra Kramer, President 
 
 
21.0 Questions from the Press and Public 
 
 
22.0 In Camera Motions brought forward for implementation 
 
 
23.0 Adjournment 
 

******************************    
 
 
Please Note: 
Where an individual/group knows in advance they wish to address the Board, a request in writing should be 
made to the Secretary-Treasurer one week in advance of the Board Meeting in accordance with Board Policy 
#1003.1. 
 
The request must indicate the subject of the presentation, any technology requirements (ie. screen, projector, 
laptop use) and the estimated time required for the presentation.  Presentations will be limited to a maximum of 
10 minutes, unless approved otherwise. 
 
If approval is granted, an electronic/written copy of the presentation must be provided no later than Thursday 
of the week before the date of presentation. 



Regular Agenda:  June 21, 2021  Page 7 
 

 
“PROVISIONAL” MINUTES 

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 60 (Peace River North) 
  
 

REGULAR MEETING Monday, May 17, 2021       
  6:30 p.m.  
 

Present: Helen Gilbert, Chair – Board of Education (Area 5) 
Madeleine Lehmann, Vice-Chair (Area 1) 
Nicole Gilliss, Vice-Chair (Area 3) 

  David Scott-Moncrieff, Trustee (Area 2) 
Bill Snow, Trustee (Area 5) 

 
Stephen Petrucci, Superintendent of Schools 
Angela Telford, Secretary-Treasurer 
Leah Reimer, Recording Secretary 

 
(Guests/Media) 
  None 
 
Regrets: Erin Evans, Trustee (Area 5) 

Ida Campbell, Trustee (Area 4) 
 
 
 
Call to Order  Chair Gilbert called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.    

 
Chair Gilbert acknowledged the traditional territorial lands of the Dane Zaa and Treaty 8. 

 
 

Agenda   
   Approval of the Agenda 
 
Motion #49-21  Gilliss/Scott-Moncrieff 
   THAT the agenda be accepted as presented. 
         CARRIED. 
 
Presentations/Delegations 
   None 

   
 

Trustee Input    At this time, opportunity was given for Trustees to report on activities 
undertaken and/or information of interest:   

 
Trustee Campbell 
• Not present 

       
Trustee Evans 
• Not present 

    
Trustee Gilliss 
• Field trip with students to Cameron Lake as a parent 
Vice-Chair Lehmann 
• SUPAC meeting 



Regular Agenda:  June 21, 2021  Page 8 
 

• PAC Meeting at Clearview – issues with busing 
• Labour Management Meeting – overall things are running smoothly 

    
Trustee Scott-Moncrieff 
• Been in contact with of administrators…handling stress quite well.  

 Vaccine seems to be calming some down 
    

Trustee Snow 
• Calls and messages to administrators 
• Visited NPSS 
 
Chair Gilbert 
• PAC meetings at four liaison schools 
• Participated in the NE Roundtable Meeting - nothing relevant to 

 bring back 
• Judged class speeches at ARYES.  Thank you to Trustees Gills, 

 Snow and Scott-Moncrieff for agreeing to judge the ARYES virtual 
 speech competition 

• SPARK Conference for Women in Leadership that was organized 
 locally.  250 participants.  Some were our students from NPSS, 
 Prespatou and Hudson’s Hope.  Done on WHOVA app that 
 provided opportunity for good discussion and information sharing 

• Evening Public Budget Consultation Meeting – good discussion 
• Acknowledgement of the creativity of the Bert Bowes PAC who are 

 working hard with the staff to do “school leaving” events for Grade 
 9’s. 

• MMMCS - excited they have garden beds going in and adding 
 raspberries 

• ARYES – Ready Set Learn – featured the Heather Hannaford Arts 
 Space 

• Asked to record a message on behalf of the Board for the NPSS 
 grad.  Trustees are asked to send anything they want included 

 
 
Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting 
    
   Approval of the Minutes 
 
Motion #50-21  Scott-Moncrieff/Snow                        

THAT the Regular Meeting Minutes of April 19, 2021 be adopted. 
         CARRIED. 
   
   Business Arising from the Minutes 
 

   The following business arose from the above noted Minutes: 
 
   Partner Group Meetings Update 
    
   School District #59 & #81 

• Chair Gilbert reached out to Board Chairs at SD #59 and #81 in 
 regards to our districts meeting around COVID recovery 

• SD #59 would like particular agenda topics 
• Agenda items: 

o Enrollment changes in regards to COVID regulations 
o COVID learning impacts 



Regular Agenda:  June 21, 2021  Page 9 
 

o Silver Linings (ie. extra cleaning protocols, etc.) 
o Worries or fears coming out of pandemic moving into the 

 next school year 
o What has percolated in the community from stakeholders, 

 parents (ie. consultation with parent groups) 
o Cross border potential travel restrictions for field trips (ie. 

 Peace River, Grande Prairie, etc.) 
o User groups in schools 

 
ACTION:  Chair Gilbert to forward agenda items to SD #69 and #81 and 
move towards choosing a date and time to set up a virtual meeting 

 
Northern Lights College 
• Board Chair reached out to Donald Fajemisin who is going to 

 contact the NLC Board and get back to us 
• Get feedback from Trustee Evans and school district staff who have 

 connections in their departments with the college 
 
   ACTION:  Follow up with NLC as well as get feedback from Trustee Evans 
   and other school district staff who have connections with the college 
  
 
Approval of Excerpts 
 
Motion #51-21  Gilliss/Snow 

THAT the excerpts from the March 8, 2021 In-Camera Meeting Minutes be 
approved and appended to these Regular Meeting Minutes. 

         CARRIED.    
     
 

Announcements & Reminders 
 

May 24 Victoria Day  
May 25 SUP-PAC Meeting (Evans/Gilbert)  12:00 p.m. Virtual 
June 7 NPAA Meeting      5:30 p.m. Virtual 
June 7 COTW Meetings    12:30 p.m. Board Room 
June 9 Policy Committee Meeting  11:00 a.m. Board Room 
June 18 NPSS Live Stream & Reverse Parade 
June 21 Board Meetings      5:30 p.m. Board Room 
June 21 Budget Submitted for Approval    6:30 p.m. Board Room 
June 24 Last Day for Students 
June 25 Hudson’s Hope Grad     1:00 p.m. 
June 25 Administrative Day – Schools Close 
 

 **Recognition of Retirees and Long Service Employees through alternate forms 
  
 
Senior Staff Reports   

    
Superintendent’s Report 
A written and electronic report was presented.  Topics discussed and 
reported included: 

 
   Human Resources Summary for Teachers & AO’s 

o For information purposes 
o Remove Cathy Cooper as it has not been confirmed if she is retiring 

 



Regular Agenda:  June 21, 2021  Page 10 
 

 
   Workforce Report 

o For information purposes 
o We are below average in terms of illnesses 

 
   Posts of Responsibility 
Motion #52-21  Snow/Lehmann 

THAT the Board approve the Posts of Responsibility at Bert Bowes as 
presented. 

         CARRIED. 
 
   School Charges 
Motion #53-21  Scott-Moncrieff/Snow 

THAT the Board approve the School Charges as presented. 
         CARRIED. 
 

o Discussion around making school fees more universal in regards to 
 school supplies and district purchasing 

 
 
   *NEW – Out of District Field Trip Approval (Attachment) 
Motion #54-21  Scott-Moncrieff/Snow 

THAT the Board approve the attached International Education Out of District 
Field Trip. 

         CARRIED. 
 

Superintendent’s Report (Attachment) 
 
   Guiding Principles for Learning Support Fund 

o For information purposes 
 
Motion #55-21  Scott-Moncrieff/Gilliss 

THAT the Board accept the Superintendent’s Report with the exception of 
Posts of Responsibility, School Fees and Out of District Field Trip Approval. 

         CARRIED. 
 
 

Secretary-Treasurer’s Report 
   A written report was presented.  Topics discussed and reported included:   
 

   Annual Facilities Grant Bylaw Update 
o Ministry has a new capital planning tool that is not available for us to 

 submit anything at this point 
o Historically submitted a spreadsheet, but now Ministry wants to 

 have everything entered into a program to track AFG, 5 year capital 
 plans, etc. 

o Program will provide a lot more information for COA projects 
 (HVAC’s, etc.).  It will be a good tool. 

o The report is ready once we’re able to complete inputting and then 
 will submit 

 
ACTION:  Bring forward to the June 21, 2021 Board Meeting for further 
review 

    
Administration Office -  Summer Hours & Summer Closure 
o For information purposes 



Regular Agenda:  June 21, 2021  Page 11 
 

   Annual Budget Consultation Update 
o District Annual Plan timeline had us passing budget today, however 

 it will not be ready until the June 21, 2021 meeting 
o Public Consultation Meeting – one person attended…good 

 interaction 
o Sent out specific invitations to our partners (ie. PRNTA, CUPE, 

 NPAA) as well as public partners (ie. DPAC, 3 First Nation groups).  
 Need to review how and when our invitations go out 

o Met with administrators at DLTM – good feedback from some as 
 well as emails with questions afterwards 

o Met one on one with department leads (ie. Indigenous Ed, KLC, 
 Learning Services, etc.) 

o Put out public survey online…as of today had 9 responses 
o Work to be done on better communication. 
o Presentation piece is good and can be adjusted and added to 

 moving forward 
o Suggestion made to ask schools to post survey link on the 

 Facebook pages 
 

ACTION:  District Staff to ask schools to post survey link on their Facebook 
pages again. 

    
 

Human Resources Summary Report 
o For information purposes 

 
Motion #56-21  Gilliss/Lehmann 

THAT the Board accept the Secretary-Treasurer’s Report. 
         CARRIED. 
    
 

Reports of Regular Committee of the Whole Meeting 
 
   Approval of the Minutes – May 3, 2021 
    
Motion #57-21  Lehmann/Snow                        

THAT the Board accept the Regular Committee of the Whole minutes of 
May 3, 2021 and its recommendations 

         CARRIED. 
 
   Business Arising from the Minutes 
   The following business arose from the above noted Minutes: 
    
   Board of Trustees Meeting Schedule 

o COTW Minutes should read “April 25 date was chosen for the April 
 board meeting” 

    
BCSTA COVID Feedback Letter 
o No changes recommended 

 
 
   Policy Committee 
 

 Policy #1008 – Trustee Indemnity (Attachment) 
Motion #58-21  Gilliss/Lehmann 
   THAT Policy #1008 be adopted as presented. 

       CARRIED. 



Regular Agenda:  June 21, 2021  Page 12 
 

 
 

 Bylaw 1/90 Organization of the Board (Attachment) 
Motion #59-21  Evans/Gilliss 
   THAT in accordance with Section 68(4) of the School Act, all three  
   readings of Bylaw 1/90 Organization of the Board be given at this  
   meeting. 
         CARRIED. 

 
Motion #60-21  Lehmann/Gilliss 

THAT the Board adopt the First Reading of Bylaw 1/90 Organization of the 
 Board. 

         CARRIED. 
  

Motion #61-21  Snow/Scott-Moncrieff 
THAT the Board adopt the Second Reading of Bylaw 1/90 Organization of 

 the Board. 
         CARRIED. 

 
Motion #62-21  Snow/Scott-Moncrieff 

THAT the Board adopt the Third Reading of Bylaw 1/90 Organization of the 
 Board. 

         CARRIED. 
 
 

 Policy #2003 – Student Placement/Kindergarten to Grade 7 
 (Attachment) 

Motion #63-21  Evans/Snow 
THAT Policy 2003 – Student Placement – Kindergarten to Grade 7 for be 

 adopted for deletion. 
         CARRIED. 

 
 

 Policy #4035- Public Interest Disclosure Act (PIDA) (Attachment) 
Motion #64-21  Gilliss/ 

 THAT the Board of Education put forward the new Policy #4035 – Public 
 Interest Disclosure Act (PIDA) for Notice of Motion. 

         CARRIED. 
 
 

 Policy #1003 – School Board Meeting Delegations (Attachment) 
Motion #65-21  Scott-Moncrieff/ 

 THAT the Board of Education put forward the Policy #1003 – School Board 
 Meeting Delegations for Notice of Motion. 

         CARRIED. 
 
 

 Policy #1001 – School Board Duties and Authority (Attachment) 
Motion #66-21  Gilliss/ 

THAT the Board of Education put a forward a Notice of Motion for deletion 
of Policy 1001 – School Board Duties and Authority. 

         CARRIED. 
 
 

 Policy #1002 – Board Member Authority (Attachment) 
Motion #67-21  Snow/ 

THAT the Board of Education put a forward a Notice of Motion for deletion 
of Policy 1002 – Board Member Authority.   

         CARRIED. 
 



Regular Agenda:  June 21, 2021  Page 13 
 

   ACTION:  Send Policies 4035, 1003, 1001, 1002 out for Notice of Motion  
   and place on the June 21, 2021 Regular Board Meeting for adoption. 
 
 
Other Reports   

BCSTA 
o Nothing to report 
 
BCPSEA 
o Nothing to report 

    
Board Pro-D Committee 
o Nothing to report 

 
Correspondence   
   Assessment Advocacy 

o Discussion around including a target date in the letter 
o Add MCFD to “cc” 
o Indigenous Health has access to funding and grants 
o There is opportunity in Prince George for a private assessment.  

 Provincially, private assessments are backlogged due to COVID as 
 well 

 
ACTION:  District Staff can discuss a reasonable target date to include in 
the letter 

 
Unfinished Business  

The following unfinished business arose from the previous meeting minutes: 
None 

    
New Business  
   None 
 
PRNTA Update – Michele Wiebe, President 
   Absent – no report 
 
CUPE Local #4653 Update – Maureen Hummel, President 

Absent – no report 
 
District Parent Advisory Council (DPAC) Report – Teresa Brown, President 
   Absent – no report 
 
Questions from Press/Public  

At this time, opportunity was given for questions from the press 
None 

     
Adjournment    
 
Motion #68-21  Scott-Moncrieff/Snow 

THAT the meeting be adjourned.   (7:49 p.m.) 
    

******************** 
 
_____________________________     __________________________   
HELEN GILBERT, CHAIR,    ANGELA TELFORD, 
BOARD OF EDUCATION    SECRETARY-TREASURER 



Regular Agenda:  June 21, 2021  Page 14 
 

 

EXCERPTS 
 FROM THE APRIL 19, 2021 

 “IN CAMERA” MEETING MINUTES 
 
The meeting was called to order and the In-camera Meeting Minutes March 8, 2021 were read and 
adopted. 

 
 

Business Arising 
• NEW – Section 11 Follow Up 
 
Approval of Excerpts 
• NEW – Administration Demographic Report 
 
Superintendent’s Report 
Items discussed and reported included: 
• COVID-19 Update – Q & A 

 
Secretary-Treasurer’s Report 
Items discussed and reported included: 
• Labour Management Meeting Minutes 
• 2021-2022 Budget Presentation 
• Finance Department Update 

 
Committee of the Whole Reports 
• NEW – Employee Recognition 
 
Other Reports 
• BCSTA 
• BCPSEA 
 
Correspondence 
• Cameron Lake Follow-Up 

 
Unfinished Business 
• None 
 
New Business 
• None 



Regular Agenda:  June 21, 2021  Page 15 
 

 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

REPORT TO THE  
 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
 

FROM THE SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS  
 

Monday, June 21, 2021 
 

Human Resources 
 
1. Human Resources Summary Report for Teachers 
 

Human Resources Summary Report for Teachers & AO’s 
for period of May 14th to June 17th, 2021 

 
 Personnel 

Assignments 
Leaves of 
Absence 

Admin 
Appointments 

Resignations 
/Retirements 

Reports on 
Teachers 

      
New 

assignments 
14 4  8 7 

      
Changes to 

existing 
10 8    

      
Return from 

leave 
     

      
Payout prep      

      
Total #      

 
RETIREES only: 
 
 

Education 
 
1. Superintendent’s Report (Attachment) 

https://togetherwelearn.prn.bc.ca/2021/06/18/superintendents-report-june-2021/ 
 

2. Workforce Report (Attachment) 
 

3. BAA Courses (Attachment) 
a) Role-Playing Games 10 
b) Role-Playing Games 11 
c) Role-Playing Games 12 

 
 Recommended Motion:  THAT the Board of Education approve the above 
 mentioned BAA Courses. 
           …2 

https://togetherwelearn.prn.bc.ca/2021/06/18/superintendents-report-june-2021/


Regular Agenda:  June 21, 2021  Page 16 
 

 
4. Post of Responsibility (Attachment) 
 Recommended Motion:  THAT the Board of Education approve the attached Post 
 of Responsibility. 

 
5. Seamless Day Kindergarten Pilot 2021-2024 (Attachment) 
 Recommended Motion:  THAT the Board of Education approve the Seamless Day 
 Kindergarten Pilot for School District #60 (Peace River North) 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Stephen Petrucci 
Superintendent of Schools 
 
 
 
 
 



Regular Agenda:  June 21, 2021  Page 17 
 

 
 

REPORT TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

FROM THE SECRETARY-TREASURER 
 

Monday, June 21, 2021 
 

REGULAR  MEETING 
 

Operations 
 
1. Upper Halfway First Nation Communication Update 

 
2. Wonowon Water Update 
 
3. School Heating Issue 
 

 
Human Resources 

 
1. Human Resources Support Staff Update 

 
Human Resources Summary Report for Support Staff 

For period of May 12th, 2021 to June 16th, 2021 
 

 Personnel 
Assignments 

Leaves of 
Absence 

Resignations 
 

    
New assignments 6 4 7 

    
Changes to existing 7   

    
Return from leave 4   

    
Layoff 22   

    
Retirements 5   

 
List of Retirees 
Kathy Kelly 
Val Braithwaite 
Susan Canuel 
Sandra LeClerc 
Maureen Hummel 

 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
 

Angela Telford, 
Secretary-Treasurer 



Regular Agenda:  June 21, 2021  Page 18 
 

 
 

SCHOOL DISTRICT #60 (PEACE RIVER NORTH) 
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 

“REGULAR” MEETING MINUTES 
MONDAY, JUNE 7, 2021 

1:30 P.M. 
 
Present: Helen Gilbert, Chair, Board of Education 

Madeleine Lehmann, Vice-Chair 
Ida Campbell, Trustee 
Erin Evans, Trustee (via Zoom) 
Nicole Gilliss, Trustee 
David Scott-Moncrieff, Trustee 
Bill Snow, Trustee 
 
Stephen Petrucci, Superintendent 
Angela Telford, Secretary Treasurer 
Leah Reimer, Recording Secretary 
 

Guests: Michele Wiebe, PRNTA President   
 
Regrets:  
 
 

Education 
 
Education Update 
Stephen Petrucci, Superintendent 

 
Framework Presentations 
Taylor Elementary School (1:30 – 2:15 p.m.) 
Craig Brownlee, Administrator 

• Fielded follow up questions from trustees 
 
Baldonnel Elementary School (2:15 – 3:00 p.m.) 
Christine Todd, Administrator 

• Fielded follow up questions from trustees 
 
Social Emotional Learning Initiatives (3:00 – 3:30 p.m.) 
Carleen Andrews, Director of Instruction 

• Fielded follow up questions from trustees 
 
 

Governance 
 

Schedule of Board of Trustees Meeting – Edit 
Helen Gilbert, Board Chair 
ACTION:  Change Monday February 21, 2022 meeting date to Tuesday, February 22, 
2022 



Regular Agenda:  June 21, 2021  Page 19 
 

Joint District Meeting Update 
Helen Gilbert, Board Chair 

• Sent an email to SD #59 & #81 regarding a virtual meeting 
• Suggested meeting later in the week after June 15 or the following week, waiting to 

see if there would be any change in COVID guidelines 
• Agenda item:  Cleaning protocols in COVID recovery 

 
ACTION:  Helen will reach out to confirm dates   
 

• Have not heard back from the Northern Lights College yet on setting up a meeting 
 
 

CSBA Equity & Inclusion Virtual Conference 
• Registration would be a flat rate of $1,000 which is based on number of students in 

our district 
• Trustees could attend any sessions they would like.  Also would be open to district 

staff 
• Some trustees expressed a possible interest 

 
ACTION:  Helen will look into registration and times in more detail 

 
 

Deputy Minister’s Bulletin re: Policy Changes 
  Helen Gilbert, Board Chair 

• Implications for policy and audit committees 
• Early work looked at accumulated surplus policy and having to implement a 

percentage. In a smaller district, it didn’t allow them to save for a larger project 
• There is guidance and practices that are encouraged in this policy.  There are 

guiding principles and not a set percentage 
• For a long time, Ministry has suggested that surplus money for districts had to be 

used.  With this policy, it’s clear boards can save money to meet certain goals.  It 
won’t be looked at by Treasury Board that the districts have money (ie. a rainy day 
fund), so it has to be used 

• Work continues to be done 
 
 

Human Resources 
 

Retirement Appreciation Update 
Helen Gilbert, Board Chair 

• Continued to have retirees added and implemented a June 1 deadline date for 
acknowledgement of retirement for this school year  

• Additional baskets had to be purchased 
• The sense from those who had baskets delivered or picked up was that they were 

appreciated 
• Have placed an order with Norbert’s Greenhouse for next year to ensure supply 
• Is there something we could do for all of our staff to thank them for hanging in there 

during a difficult year (ie. coffee for schools, baked goods, etc.).  Trustees agreed 
 



Regular Agenda:  June 21, 2021  Page 20 
 

ACTION:  Helen will look into further and keep trustees up to date by email 
 

Trustee Evans left the meeting @ 2:47 p.m. 
 
 

Operations 
 

Operations Report 
Angela Telford, Secretary-Treasurer 

• Funding for Bert Bowes Secondary playground is being funded out of the 
principal’s trust account 

• No update from Ministry in regards to the Wonowon school replacement 
• Ministry reached out regarding the Upper Halfway build, inquiring if there was 

district monies that could be put towards the project.  The response was 
no…haven’t heard anything further. 
ACTION:  Angela to communicate with the Upper Halfway First Nation band with an 
update 

• Wonowon School water – discussion around supply costs, mineral content and 
water that is brought in versus well water 
ACTION:  Angela will look into Wonowon water details and bring back to the Board 

• Concerns from a few schools regarding the heat being on at the school during plus 
20 days 
ACTION:  Angela will look into this further 

• Paving of the Bert Ambrose parking lot is being paid for out of AFG funding.  City is 
paving road in front of school this summer 

 
 
*NEW Audit Committee Meeting on June 17, 2021 @ 12:00 p.m. 

• There will be a detailed budget review 
• All trustees are welcome to attend 

 































































Math Assessment and Practice - Spring 2021
Percentage of students that are meeting or exceeding expectations

F=Fall

Percentage of students
that Meets / Exceeds Grade 4F Grade 4 Grade 5F Grade 5 Grade 6F Grade 6

Communicating &
Representing 92 93 91 92 87 79

Understanding & Solving 71 76 83 81 72 73

Connecting & Reflecting 59 63 73 80 65 73

Reasoning & Analyzing 78 79 75 85 87 84

Percentage of students
that Meets / Exceeds Grade 8F Grade 8 Grade 9F Grade 9

Communicating &
Representing 75 83 78 88

Understanding & Solving 75 75 64 63

Connecting & Reflecting 64 79 64 80

Reasoning & Analyzing 83 83 72 79

Percentage of students
that Meets / Exceeds

Grade
10F Grade 10

Grade
11F Grade 11

Grade
12F Grade 12

Communicating &
Representing 89 87 82 57 33 33

Understanding & Solving 70 76 18 71 33 100

Connecting & Reflecting 81 78 81 57 33 33

Reasoning & Analyzing 73 77 27 29 33 33

● grade 7 results are not part of the District collection as we have the FSA results.  Some
teachers put in results for grade 4 anyways.



Spring Literacy Results - Comparison Between Spring 2019 and Spring 2021

PMB % Meets/Exceeds Gr 1 Gr 2

2018-2019 61 68

2020-2021 53 64

Fluency - % Meets/Exceed Gr 3 Gr 4 Gr 5 Gr 6 Gr 7 Gr 8 Gr 9

2018-2019 65 76 78 67 69 84 89

2020-2021 66 79 69 63 78 85 89

Comprehension - %
Meets/Exceeds Gr 3 Gr 4 Gr 5 Gr 6 Gr 7 Gr 8 Gr 9

2018-2019 55 61 69 51 57 64 70

2020-2021 58 60 66 55 63 36 37









Seamless Day Kindergarten Pilots in BC Schools, 2021
Maureen Dockendorf:  BC Ministry of Education, Early Care and Learning Consultant
Photos are from the SD 53 Seamless Day Educator Team and reflect the context of the learning community

Additional photos are from the BC Early Learning Framework, and ‘Unsplash’



BC Government is creating a universally accessible, quality early care and learning system and is 
moving responsibility for child care to the Ministry of Education. 

Ministry of Education is:

• in the process of providing universal access to 
before and after school care on school 
grounds so children have consistent 
relationships with the same people and places

• using existing Kindergarten/Primary 
classrooms for expanding before and after 
school care 

• licensing the classrooms with resulting new 
programs (e.g., Seamless Day Pilot) operated 
directly by the School District

• ensuring high quality early care and learning 
by providing Early Childhood Educator 
expertise



Model #1: Seamless Day Kindergarten Pilot
Staff: An Educator team of 1 Kindergarten Teacher and 
2 Early Childhood Educators (ECE) employed by the 
School District

Description: before and after school care is offered 
from approx. 7:15 am to 5:30 pm with the two ECEs 
providing the care and working alongside the 
Kindergarten teacher, in the licensed Kindergarten 
classroom, during the school day (maximum 12 
children).

Age Group of Children:  Kindergarten children take 
priority and if there is space, Grade 1 – Grade 2 children 
are welcome (priority given to siblings)

Model #2: Extended Day
Staff: employees of the School District 

Description: before and after school care programs are 
offered in existing Kindergarten/Primary classrooms 
that have been licensed by the School District 
(maximum 12 children).

Age Group of Children:  Kindergarten to Grade 2 
children

Once classrooms are licensed, School Districts can deliver two models of before and after 
school child care:



School District Piloting Year

Okanagan-Similkameen – SD 53 Year 2 opened in Sept. 2019

Sunshine Coast – SD 46 Year 1 opened in March 2021

West Vancouver SD – 45 Year 1 opened in April 2021

Qualicum – SD 69 Year 1 opening in May 2021

Ministry of Education is supporting School Districts to provide before and after school care on 
school grounds as a first step to universal access for all children under 12 whose families choose 
it.   One model is the Seamless Day Kindergarten Pilot.

NOTE: The remainder of the PowerPoint reflects information on Model #1, the Seamless Day Model, with the exception of a 
description of a new MOE Early Care and Learning Pilot Program:  ‘JUST B4’.

Seamless Day Kindergarten Pilots: Examples on School Grounds

•currently learning from School 
District champions & early adopters

•3 Seamless Day Kindergarten Pilots 
opened in Spring, 2021

•20 Seamless Day Kindergarten Pilots 
opening in Fall, 2021

•1 new MOE Early Care and Learning 
‘JUST B4’ Pilot Program opening in 
May 2021
• StrongStart BC Centre in the 

morning and a 4-year-old early 
years program in the afternoon in 
the same licensed classroom with 
the same Early Childhood Educator



Seamless Day Kindergarten Pilot …

• implements an ‘Educator Team’: a collaborative structure 
of Early Childhood Educators working alongside 
Kindergarten Teachers during the school day

AM ECE Shift:  7:15 am   - 1:15 pm
PM ECE Shift:  11:30 am - 5:30 pm

• reduces daily transitions for children and families 
(seamless), reduces stress (OECD)

• provides an inclusive, equitable, high-quality early learning 
program that supports all children

• offers new opportunities for recruitment and retention of  
ECEs and honors ECEs as professionals

• engages in respectful dialogue with Primary Teachers to 
ensure that collaborative use of classroom space is the 
teacher’s choice and builds on examples of success where 
shared space is working well



Seamless Day Kindergarten Pilot …

• adopts the BC Early Learning Framework as a 
foundational support to quality early learning 
experiences and to provide a vision for early 
childhood education

• supports children to be creative and critical thinkers

• provides learning continuity and coherence in 
pedagogy between the Early Years and the Primary 
Grades

• creates a daily continuum of care and learning for 
children and families 

• reduces transitions between early care and learning 
programs, schools and other services  

• includes Grade 1  - Grade 3 children before and after 
school where space permits with priority for siblings



Seamless Day Kindergarten Pilot is grounded in The BC Early 
Learning Framework and the BC Education Curriculum Core 

Competencies  

• shares philosophies that support the educator team in 
designing environments that are flexible, responsive, and 
relevant to their local community

• promotes the purposeful design, organization and 
implementation of learning environments that leverage 
young children’s inclination to play 

• inspires and supports the creation of rich, joyful early 
childhood spaces where children, adults, ideas, and 
materials come together and where knowledge is 
constructed about learning and living in ways that are local, 
inclusive, ethical and democratic (ELF, pg. 11)

• meeting place for joint Professional Learning for Early 
Childhood Educators and Primary Teachers

• aligns in vision, principles, rethinking of practice and context 
relevant to working with children and families

BC Curriculum Core Competencies



The pedagogy of the Seamless 
Day Kindergarten Pilot is based 
on:

the image of the child as strong, 
capable in their uniqueness, and 
full of potential, living and 
growing in complex 
interdependence with humans 
and all world relations. (Early 
Learning Framework, page 15)



The Seamless Day Educator Team at 
Oliver Elementary School, SD 53

• Educator Team: 2 Early Childhood 
Educators and 1 Kindergarten 
teacher

• photo was taken during the 45 
minutes when Educators transition 
from the morning ECE to the 
afternoon ECE

• 19 children (some are working 
independently with materials)



Seamless Day Educator Team 
Collaborative Planning

25 minutes each week is built in for 
the Educator Team to meet and plan

The Educator Team continually 
engages in the BC Early Learning 
Framework practices of:

-collaborative dialogue

-pedagogy of listening

-pedagogical narration

-critical reflection inviting comments, 
questions, and interpretations

What have we noticed?
What do we wonder?
What have we learned?
Where to next?



Seamless Day Kindergarten Pilot offers before and after school care option with seamless 

transitions for children and families …

• children have consistent relationships 
with the same people and places

• 1 cubby for their belongings

• 1 parent message book

• 1 place for take home artifacts

• 1 parent newsletter

• children spend their day in one space, 
including the school gym and the 
outdoor environment everyday

• Grade 1 – 2 children can attend before 
and after school care, space permitting 



Follow the SD 53 Seamless Day 
Kindergarten Pilot on Instagram!

@seamless_day_kindy



The Seamless Day Kindergarten Pilot
Year 1 Research and Evaluation Report

2019 – 2020 

The Seamless Day Research and Evaluation Report is 
available on the SD 53 Website.

Follow on Instagram:  @seamless_day_kindy



Blah bla

.

Starting Strong V: Transitions
Focus on transitions to primary school underscores the value of 
common governance and consistent coherent pedagogy from the 
early years into primary education. 

OECD, 2019



Contacts:

Maureen Dockendorf:  maureen.dockendorf@gov.bc.ca

Kira Reynolds: kira.reynolds@gov.bc.ca

Bev Young, Superintendent of Schools SD 53
byoung@sd53.bc.ca

Kindergarten Teacher Melia Dirk: mdirk@sd53.bc.ca

C
R

4Y
C

 2
01

9-2
02

0

mailto:kira.reynolds@gov.bc.ca
mailto:byoung@sd53.bc.ca




















Policy Committee Meeting Notes 
Wednesday, June 9, 2021 

11:00 a.m. 
 
Attendees:  Stephen Petrucci, Superintendent 
 Erin Evans, Policy Committee Chair 
 Helen Gilbert, Board Chair 
 Madeleine Lehmann, Vice-Chair 
 Ida Campbell - Trustee 
 Leah Reimer – Executive Assistant 
 
Regrets: Angela Telford, Secretary-Treasurer 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
#1001 Roles and Responsibilities of the Board and Trustees 
• Replacing Code of Ethics, Roles & Responsibilities and enhancing Bylaw 1/90 
• Small changes and then send for Notice of Motion 

 
ACTION:  Place on the June 21, 2021 Regular Board Meeting for Notice of Motion 
 
 
#1010 Code of Conduct 
• Content has been added to new policy 1001 

 
ACTION:  Place on the June 21, 2021 Regular Board Meeting for Notice of Motion 
 
 
#2001 School Fees 
• Insert red/strikethrough of old policy for removal 
 
ACTION:  Place on the June 21, 2021 Regular Board Meeting for Notice of Motion 
 
 
#2004 Student Admission & Choice 
• Red/strikethrough – removed because it’s procedural and is reflective in the School of Choice letter 

that was circulated to the committee after the last meeting for review 
• Some language is outdated as well 
 
ACTION:  Place on the June 21, 2021 Regular Board Meeting for Notice of Motion 
 
 
NEW - Next Meeting Agenda Items: 
 

1. #??? International Travel 
• Will need to prioritize International Travel policy for clarification in regards to 3rd party tours, 

EF Tours, etc. 
 

ACTION:  Stephen will provide information, examples, etc. before the next meeting 
 

2. #2005 Curricular & Extra Curricular Field Trips - review 
 

3. #1012 Records Management - NEW 
 



ACTION:  Bring draft to next meeting 
 

4. #???? NEW - Conducting Educational Research – Draft 
 
ACTION:  Bring draft to next meeting 

 
5. #4018 Prevention of Harassment/Respectful Workplace 

Reconnect prior to meeting and see where we’re at 
 
 

Agenda Setting Date:  Wednesday, September 29, 2021 @ 1:00 p.m. 
 

Next Meeting Date:  Monday, October 4, 2021 @ 11:00 p.m. 
 



Page 1 of 3 
 

 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 
School District No. 60 
(Peace River North) 
 

 
4000 Personnel 
 
4035  Public Interest Disclosure Act (PIDA) 
 
Adopted:  
Revised: 
Reviewed: 
 
Reference: 
 
Policy 
 
Purpose 
 
The Board of Education of School District No. 60 (Peace River North) is committed to honesty, 
integrity, and accountability in its operations, programs, and services and to promoting a culture 
of openness and transparency. The School District encourages and supports all personnel in 
bringing forward reports of unlawful acts and acts of wrongdoing in a manner consistent with the 
provisions of the British Columbia Public Interest Disclosure Act (“PIDA”). 

The purpose of this Policy and related Procedures is to establish a process, in compliance with 
the PIDA, for employees and trustees to report, in good faith, wrongful or unlawful conduct 
without fear of retaliation or reprisal. 
 
Scope of Policy 
 
This Policy applies to alleged wrongdoing related to the School District’s operations or 
personnel. This Policy does not displace other mechanisms set out in School District Policy for 
addressing and enforcing standards of conduct, disputes, complaints, or grievances, including 
issues of discrimination, bullying and harassment, occupational health and safety, or disputes 
over employment matters or under collective agreements. 
 

Guidelines/Principles: 

Definitions 

In this Policy and the Procedures, the following capitalized terms are defined as indicated: 
 
“Advice” means advice that may be requested in respect of making a Disclosure or a 
complaint about a Reprisal under this Policy or the PIDA; 
 
“Discloser” means an Employee or Trustee who makes a Disclosure or seeks Advice or 



Page 2 of 3 
 

makes a complaint about a Reprisal; 

“Discloser” means an Employee or Trustee who makes a Disclosure; 

“Disclosure” means a report of Wrongdoing made under this Policy; 

“Employee” refers to a past and present employee of the School District; 

“FIPPA” means the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, and all 
regulations thereto; 

“Investigation” means an investigation undertaken by the School District under this Policy 
or by the Ombudsperson under the PIDA; 

“Personal Information” has the same meaning set out in FIPPA, namely “recorded 
information about an identifiable individual”, and includes any information from which the 
identity of the Discloser or any person who is accused of Wrongdoing or participates in an 
Investigation can be deduced or inferred; 

“Personnel” means Employees and Trustees; 

“PIDA” means the Public Interest Disclosure Act of British Columbia, and all regulations 
thereto; 

“Procedure” means the School District’s Administrative Procedure associated with this 
Policy, as amended; 
“Reprisal” means the imposition of, and any threat to impose, discipline, demotion, 
termination or any other act that adversely affects employment or working condition of a 
member of Personnel because they made a Disclosure, sought Advice, made a complaint 
about a Reprisal or participated in an Investigation;  

 “Trustee” means a past or present member of the School District’s Board of Education; and  

“Wrongdoing” refers to: 

a. a serious act or omission that, if proven, would constitute an offence under an 
enactment of British Columbia or Canada; 

b. an act or omission that creates a substantial and specific danger to the life, 
health or safety of persons, or to the environment, other than a danger that is 
inherent in the performance of an employee’s duties or functions; 

c. a serious misuse of public funds or public assets; 

d. gross or systematic mismanagement; 

e. knowingly directing or counselling a person to commit any act or omission 
described in paragraphs (a) to (d) above. 

 



Page 3 of 3 
 

 

Statement of Principles 

 The School District is committed to supporting ethical conduct in its operations, and seeks to 
foster a culture in which Employees and Trustees are encouraged to disclose Wrongdoing, 
including by receiving, investigating and responding to Disclosures and by providing 
information and training about the PIDA, this Policy and the Procedures. 

 The School District will investigate Disclosures that it receives under this Policy.  
Investigations under this Policy will be carried out in accordance with the principles of 
procedural fairness and natural justice.  

 The School District will not commit or tolerate Reprisals against any Employee or Trustee 
who, in good faith, makes a request for Advice, makes a Disclosure, participates in an 
Investigation or makes a complaint under this Policy.  

 The School District is committed to protecting the privacy of Disclosers, persons accused of 
Wrongdoing and those who participate in Investigations in a manner that is consistent with 
its obligations under the PIDA and FIPPA. 

Privacy and Confidentiality 

All Personal Information that the School District collects, uses or shares in the course of 
receiving or responding to a Disclosure, a request for Advice, a complaint of a Reprisal, or 
conducting an Investigation will be treated as confidential and will be used and disclosed as 
described in this Policy, the Procedures, the PIDA or as otherwise permitted or required under 
FIPPA and other applicable laws. 

Reporting 

Each year, the Superintendent shall prepare, in accordance with the requirements of the PIDA, 
and make available, a report concerning any Disclosures received, Investigations undertaken 
and findings of Wrongdoing. All reporting under this Policy will be in compliance with the 
requirements of FIPPA. 

Responsibility 

The Superintendent is responsible for the administration of this Policy, and shall ensure that 
training and instruction is available to all Employees and Trustees concerning this Policy, the 
Procedures and the PIDA. 

In the event that the Superintendent is unable or unavailable to perform their duties under this 
Policy, the Superintendent may delegate their authority in writing to the Secretary-Treasurer or 
other senior members of Personnel. 
 
 







Revised: 02/2012 
1 

Policy No. 1001 

 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 60 (Peace River North) 

 
 
 

POLICY NO.: 1001 DATE APPROVED:  1992-04 
 
SUBJECT:  School Board Duties and Authority 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Policy 
 
The Board acknowledges that the statutory powers and duties of the Board are set forth in the School 
Act, and recognize that the rights, powers, duties and liabilities of the Board of Education rest only 
with the legally constituted Board, and not with committees of Trustees or individual Trustees. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Revised: 02/2012 
1 

Policy No. 1002 

 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 60 (Peace River North) 

 
 
 

POLICY NO.: 1002 DATE APPROVED:  1992-04 
 
SUBJECT: Board Member Authority 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Policy 
 
The duty of each individual Board member is to remain committed to reaching and supporting group 
decisions, of the Board. 
 
 



 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 
School District No. 60 
(Peace River North) 
 

 
1000 Governance 
 
1001  Roles and Responsibilities of the Board and Trustees 
 
Adopted:  
Revised: 
Reviewed: 
 
Reference: School Act, Bylaw 1/90 
 
 
Policy 
 
The statutory powers and duties of the Board are referenced in the School Act, noted above.  
The role, responsibilities, and expectations of trustees are expanded upon in this policy.  
Overall, the role of the trustee is to contribute to the Board as it carries out its mandate to 
improve student achievement and inspire confidence in the public education system.   
 
Guidelines/Principles 
 

● The corporate Board governs through policy and is guided by the Board Strategic Plan, 
which sets out broad educational and operational goals.  Staff develop detailed 
operational plans to align with the Board Strategic Plan and provide updates on progress 
to the Board.  The administration of the District is the responsibility of the 
Superintendent/CEO 
 

Role of Chair  
 
The main duty of the Board Chair is to ensure that each member of the Board has a full and fair 
opportunity to be heard and understood by his/her peers so that a collective opinion can be 
developed which is truly based on the thinking of the group.  
 
Specific Duties of the Chair  
 

1. Those listed in Procedural Bylaw No. 1-90 
 

To demonstrate leadership and facilitate effective operation of the Board by helping 
Board members operate together as a group to accomplish their goals and by helping to 
resolve differences in philosophy through meaningful debate. 

 
2. To convene Board meetings with the Secretary-Treasurer and Superintendent of 

Schools, and jointly develop the agenda for these meetings.  To make certain that 



 

Page 2 of 3 
 

trustees are provided with sufficient information to assess the matters before them by 
arranging for an agenda and information package to be distributed in advance of 
meetings.  

 
3. To preside at all regular Board meetings and establish and maintain, with Board 

members, an atmosphere conducive to permitting calm deliberation with effective and 
timely conduct of the Board's affairs.  To know the basics of parliamentary procedures, 
to refer to rules of order when necessary and to ensure that all questions are decided 
with due consideration.  To monitor the implementation of directives.  

 
4. To accept the prime responsibility for the establishment of procedures which have 

dignity and meaning to members of the public who are in attendance at meetings.  To 
act as a cordial host to delegates, ensuring their presentation is appropriately heard by 
the Board.  

 
5. To encourage the Board's attention to policy questions rather than administrative 

matters.  
 

6. To encourage the Board to develop and keep up-to-date, the Board's bylaws and policy 
file to meet the changing needs of the school system.  To provide continuing direction for 
the administration by clarifying the intent of Board policy.  To protect the senior 
administration and staff from inappropriate demands from individual trustees.  To work 
for support and trust of the administration and staff.  

 
7. To enlist the interest of Board members in the education programs being offered in the 

schools so that policy making at Board meetings is done intelligently.  To keep up-to-
date on changes affecting the local education system.  

 
8. To foster the development of good relationships between the Board and:  

a. local elected governments within school district boundaries; 
b. other educational institutions within school district boundaries; 
c. the general public including local community and parent groups. 

 
9. To assume some responsibility for the orientation of new trustees by introducing them to 

key representatives of the system and by providing them with background information 
concerning the operation of the Board and the system.  

 
10. To act as official spokesperson for the Board and to present the corporate viewpoint on 

matters relating to Board policy.  To represent public school education in the community 
and to promote public interest and participation in the operation of the school system.  
To ensure that the press are provided with the information needed to accurately report 
on Board meetings.  

 
 
Trustee Responsibilities 
 

1. To observe the bylaws, policies and regulations of the Peace River North Board of 
Education; the School Act, Regulations and Orders; and other relevant statutes.  

 



 

Page 3 of 3 
 

2. As an individual, it is my responsibility to devote time, thought and study to trusteeship in 
order to render effective and credible service as an advocate for students and public 
education.  

 
3. To recognize that the expenditures of public funds is a public trust and will see that such 

expenditures are done efficiently, economically and for the best interest of students in 
the district.  

 
4. To be cognizant of legislation and policy concerning conflict of interest and will abstain 

from discussing or voting on issues where such conflict exists.  
 

5. To remember at all times that as an individual, there is no legal authority held outside the 
meetings of the Board.  Relationships with staff, citizens and media will be conducted on 
this basis.  

 
6. To abide by majority decisions of the Board and will accept these decisions as essential 

to the democratic process and will not undermine these decisions.  
 

7. To hold the closed business of the Board in strictest confidence and shall continue to do 
so even after retiring from the Board.  

 
8. To observe proper decorum and behavior at all times. 

 
9. To treat my fellow Trustees with respect and consideration in order to facilitate a full and 

open discussion of the business at hand.  
 

10. To endeavor to attend all Board, Committee and external agency meetings to which I am 
appointed.  As a courtesy, to notify the Secretary-Treasurer’s office or Chair of any 
absences.  

 
11. To recognize the role of the Superintendent as Chief Executive Officer responsible for 

the day-to-day administration of the school district and will not in any way interfere with, 
or undermine his or her authority.  

 
12. When members of the public raise concerns regarding the school system, to refer them 

to the Superintendent and/or Secretary-Treasurer. 
 



 
Revised 08/25/2014 
 Policy No. 7402 

 

 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 60 (Peace River North) 

 
 
 

POLICY NO. 1010 DATE APPROVED: 1992-04 
 
SUBJECT: Code of Ethics 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Policy 
 
This Policy will establish a Code of Ethics for Trustees. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Revised 08/25/2014 
 Policy No. 7402 

 

 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 60 (Peace River North) 

 
 

R E G U L A T I O N S 
 

POLICY NO.:  7402 DATE APPROVED:  1992-04 
 
SUBJECT: Code of Ethics 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
It is recognized that Trustees: 

• have been entrusted  with the educational development of the children and youth of this 
community; 

 
• first and greatest concern to be in the best interest of each and every one of these young 

people without distinction as to who they are or what their background might be; 
 

• should devote time, thought and study to the duties and responsibilities of office and 
should endeavor to attend and responsibly participate in all Board meetings; 

 
• Recognizes the future welfare of this community, of this province, and the nation depends 

in the largest measure upon the quality of education we provide in the public schools to fit 
the needs of every learner; 

 
• Acknowledge legal authority of the Board is derived from the province which ultimately 

controls the organization and operation of the school district and which determines the 
degree of discretionary power left with the Board and the people of this community for the 
exercise of local autonomy; 

 
• Understand expenditure of funds is a public trust, and shall endeavor to see that all such 

funds be expended efficiently, economically and for the best interest of the student 
 
In view of the foregoing considerations, Trustees shall endeavor to: 
 

• work with Board members in a spirit of harmony and cooperation treating others with 
respect and consideration; ; maintain confidentiality of privileged information, sharing info 
or knowledge on matters of concern; 

• base decisions upon all available facts in each situation, vote with honest conviction in 
every case, be unswayed by partisan bias of any kind, and thereafter abide by and uphold 
the final majority decision of the Board; 

• remember at all times that legal authority rest with the corporate body of the Board and 
individuals conduct their relationships on the basis of this fact;  

• bear in mind under all circumstances that the primary function of the Board is to establish 
policies by which the schools are to be administered, but that the administration of school 
business shall be left to the Superintendent of Schools, the Secretary-Treasurer and 
respective staff; 

• to be informed of provincial and national developments in education; 
• resist every temptation and outside pressure to use their position as a trustee to benefit 

themselves or any other individual or agency apart from the total interest of the school 
district; 

•  strive towards ideal conditions for most effective school board service to the community 
in a spirit of teamwork and devotion to public education as the greatest instrument for the 
preservation and perpetuation of our representative democracy. 

 



 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 
School District No. 60 
(Peace River North) 
 

 
2000 Students 
 
2001 School Fees 
 
Adopted:  2003-03 
Revised:  2012-02 
Reviewed: 2021-06 
 
Reference: School Act – Section 82 
 
Policy 
 
In keeping with the provisions of the School Act, its accompanying Regulations and/or Orders of 
the Minister, the Board of School trustees authorizes the charging of fees for goods and 
services, and the requiring of deposits for educational resource materials. 
 
 
Guidelines/Principles: 
 
The Principal of a School: 
 

• is responsible for establishing school fees as provided in this policy. 
• shall consult with appropriate teachers, students and/or parental organizations prior to 

establishing a fee. 
• shall ensure that all fees are established at the minimum level necessary to recover the 

cost of an activity, course or program. 
• shall make certain that there is a fair and confidential procedure for waiving a fee, in 

whole or in part, for cases where a student would not be able to participate in activities 
due to financial hardship. 

• shall prepare a schedule of fees and provide this schedule to the Superintendent:  
 
 
The Superintendent: 
 

• shall review annually the schedule of fees for all schools to ensure that fees are 
appropriate throughout the School District. 

• shall prepare a schedule of fees for all schools in the School District and provide this to 
the Board for information and approval: 
 

 
 
 



 

Page 2 of 4 
 

Publication of School Fees: 
 

• The principal of each school is responsible for making students and parents aware of fees 
established under this policy.   A schedule of fees shall be published in school handbooks, 
school course selection guides, or school newsletters, prior to or upon school opening in 
September. 

 
• Publicity regarding fees shall include a reference to the possibility of a fee waiver in 

cases of financial hardship and the means by which such a waiver may be obtained. 
 
 
Accounting: 
 

• All monies collected and distributed by a school are public funds and are subject to an 
audit by the Secretary-Treasurer. 
• proper accounting procedures shall be maintained at each school. 
• the principal shall be responsible for authorizing all expenditures. 

 
 

Course Challenge or Equivalency, Distance Education College Credit Courses: 
 

• The Board may charge students for costs incurred when students challenge a course or 
seek course equivalency.   

 
• The Board will pay for students to enroll in Distance Education courses when such 

courses are required and unavailable within any of its schools.  Such payment will be 
provided upon successful completion of the course. 

 
 
Extra-Curricular Activities: 
 

• Students might be charged for participation in some extra-curricular activities.  It is 
expected that these costs will be kept to a minimum.  These charges will be determined 
by the actual cost.  Examples of these charges include travel, hotel accommodation and 
where the use of equipment, uniforms, and supplies are expended (e.g. sports team 
such as football.) 

  



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

Policy 
 
In keeping with the provisions of the School Act, its accompanying Regulations and/or Orders of the 
Minister, the Board of School trustees authorizes the charging of fees for goods and services, and the 
requiring of deposits for educational resource materials. 
 

 
REGULATIONS 

 
ESTABLISHMENT OF SCHOOL FEES 
 
The principal of a school: 
 

• is responsible for establishing school fees as provided in this policy. 
• shall consult with appropriate teachers, students and/or parental organizations prior to 

establishing a fee. 
• shall ensure that all fees are established at the minimum level necessary to recover the cost of an 

activity, course or program. 
• shall make certain that there is a fair and confidential procedure for waiving a fee, in whole or in 

part, for cases where a student would not be able to participate in activities due to financial 
hardship. 

• shall prepare a schedule of fees and provide this schedule to the Superintendent:  
 
The Superintendent: 
 

• shall review annually the schedule of fees for all schools to ensure that fees are consistent 
throughout the School District. 

• shall prepare a schedule of fees for all schools in the School District and provide this to the Board 
for information and approval: 

 
PUBLICATION OF SCHOOL FEES 
 
The principal of each school is responsible for making students and parents aware of fees 
established under this policy.   A schedule of fees shall be published in school handbooks, school 
course selection guides, or school newsletters, prior to or upon school opening in September. 

 
Publicity regarding fees shall include a reference to the possibility of a fee waiver in cases of financial 
hardship and the means by which such a waiver may be obtained. 
 
 
FINANCIAL HARDSHIP 
 
Principals are responsible for establishing procedures to facilitate participation in school activities by 
students who would otherwise be excluded due to financial hardship.  Insofar as possible, Principals will 
consult with teachers, students and parents in the development of such procedures. 
 
The procedure must incorporate the principles of fairness, respect, dignity, confidentiality and sensitivity.  
Students, parents and staff will be advised of the procedure. 
 
All communications with students and parents regarding fees must include a statement explaining that 
fees will not be a barrier to student participation in school activities.   
 
No student will be denied Ministry mandated educational opportunities offered at the school due to 



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

financial hardship. 
 
In secondary schools, the statement explaining that no student will be denied participation in Ministry 
mandated educational opportunities offered at the school will be published along with the fee schedule in 
the school course selection handbook.  The procedure for addressing financial hardship will also be 
included in the handbook. 
 
ALTERNATE PAYMENT 
 
School personnel dealing with parents experiencing financial difficulty should be prepared to, where 
appropriate: 
 

• waive fees to ensure no student is denied access to required programs or activity. 
• make parents aware that if fee payment is a problem they may approach the school and be 

assured that confidences will be respected. 
• ensure that staff needing to know of the alternative payment provision is so informed. 

 
ACCOUNTING 
 
All monies collected and distributed by a school are public funds and are subject to an audit by the 
Secretary-Treasurer. 
 

• proper accounting procedures shall be maintained at each school. 
 

• the principal shall be responsible for authorizing all expenditures. 
 

COURSE CHALLENGE OR EQUIVALENCY, DISTANCE EDUCATION COLLEGE 
CREDIT COURSES 
 
The Board may charge students for costs incurred when students challenge a course or seek course 
equivalency.   
 
The Board will pay for students to enroll in Distance Education courses when such courses are required 
and unavailable within any of its schools.  Such payment will be provided upon successful completion of 
the course. 
 
 
EXTRA-CURRICULAR ACTIVITIES 
 
Students might be charged for participation in some extra-curricular activities.  It is expected that these 
costs will be kept to a minimum.  These charges will be determined by the actual cost.  Examples of these 
charges include travel, hotel accommodation and where the use of equipment, uniforms, and supplies are 
expended (e.g. sports team such as football.) 
 



 

Page 1 of 6 
 

 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 
School District No. 60 
(Peace River North) 
 

 
2000 Students 
 
2004  School Admission and School Choice 
 
Adopted:  1980-02 
Revised:  2012-02 
Reviewed: 2021-06 
 
Reference: School Act – Sections 2 & 3 
 
Policy 
 
Student admission in School District No. 60 (Peace River North) is to be guided by the following 
principles: 
 
- Access to neighbourhood school: The admission process should maximize the number of 

students able to attend their catchment area school in accordance with their wishes 
 
- Choice: The admission process should maximize the student’s and parent’s ability to choose 

the school and educational program which best meets the student’s educational needs. 
 
- Efficient resource allocation: The admission process should enable school and district staffs 

to plan the allocation of space and instructional resources to best accommodate demand 
and minimize adjustments required at the beginning of the school year. 

 
The Board will endeavor to provide programs that meet the interests and needs of district 
students. 
  



 

Page 2 of 6 
 

REGULATIONS 
 
1.  Definitions 
 
1.1   “catchment area child” means a person 

(a) of school age, and  
(b) resident in the catchment area of the school 

 
1.2 “district choice programs” are programs established with a particular educational focus, 
offered at specific schools, for which application to the school district must be made. They 
may have special program entrance criteria and special catchment areas. 

 
1.3   “feeder schools” and their associated “receiving schools” are as described by the 
board’s catchment areas, where the class from the highest grade offered by the feeder 
school would be enrolled the next year in a designated receiving school unless an application 
for enrolment elsewhere (variance) is accepted, under the district’s enrolment process for 
continuing students. 

 
1.4   “non-catchment area child” means a person  

(a) of school age,  
(b) resident in the school district and 
(c) not resident in the catchment area of the school 

  
1.5   “non-school district child” means a person 

(a) of school age, 
 (b) resident in British Columbia, and  
 (c) not resident in the school district. 
 
1.6    “parent” includes a guardian of the person appointed by court order or under the will of a 

deceased parent, and does not include a non-custodial parent. 
 
1.7   “place of residence”:  For purposes of this policy, a student’s place of residence is deemed 

to be that of the student’s parent, unless satisfactory evidence is produced that the 
student’s ordinary place of residence during the school year is elsewhere.  

 
1.8   “previous school year” means the school year previous to the school year for which the 

person is applying to enroll in an educational program. 
  
1.9   “school district child” means a catchment area child, a non-catchment area child or a 

student from outside the district given special permission to enroll by the Board. 
 
 
2.  Determination of Available Space and Facilities 

 

2.1   For purposes of section 74.1(6) and (7) of the School Act, space and facilities are available 
in a school to enroll a student or applicant if there is expected, based on reasonable 



 

Page 3 of 6 
 

enrolment projections, to be capacity to provide the student or applicant with an 
educational program appropriate to his or her needs, taking into account physical and 
educational resources. 

 
2.2   The board of trustees delegates to the Superintendent of Schools or his or her designate, 

the decisions whether space and facilities are available in individual schools and 
educational programs for purposes of section 74.1(6) and (7) of the School Act, in 
accordance with paragraphs 2.1 and 2.3.  

 
2.3 Decisions on space and facilities availability will be made in consultation with the principal 

of the affected school and will be based on program capacity, including consideration of 
the following factors:  
 the operating capacity of the school as defined by the Ministry of Education 
 staff assigned to a school by the district 
 the physical space in which instructional programs operate in the school 
 the ability of the school to provide appropriate educational programs for the applicant 

and other students 
 the needs of other programs located in the school 
 the number of students in the classroom. 

 

2.4   If space and facilities are determined to be available, enrolment in educational programs in 
the school will be offered in the following priority order, provided that application deadlines 
and requirements are met:  
 

 catchment area child who attended the school during the previous school year 
 other catchment area child  

i.  who is a sibling of a child currently enrolled in the school  
ii.  child who has moved into the catchment area but has not yet attended catchment 
school) 
 non-catchment child who has attended the school for three (3) consecutive years is 

considered to become the equivalent of a catchment area child 
 non-catchment child who attended the school during the previous school year 
 non-catchment area child 
 non-school district child. 

 

2.5  The School Board reserves the right to alter and adjust catchment areas based on 
enrollment, facilities, staffing and current resources.  In this event students will be assigned 
enrollment on the following basis: 
 

 catchment area child who attended the school during the previous school year 
 other catchment area child  
i.   who is a sibling of a child currently enrolled in the school  
ii.  child who has moved into the catchment area but has not yet attended catchment 



 

Page 4 of 6 
 

school) 
non-catchment child who has attended the school for three (3) consecutive years is 
considered to become the equivalent of a catchment area child 
 non-catchment child who attended the school during the previous school year 
 non-catchment child who has a sibling that attends the school 
 non-catchment area child 
 non-school district child. 

 

 

2.6 Waitlists will be established for those not accepted.  These waitlists are to be maintained 
throughout the school year and parents (in order of registration) will be notified as space 
becomes available.  

 
2.7 Re-evaluation of space availability will take place throughout the school year to ensure 

that the maximum numbers of requests are met at the earliest time possible. 

 

 

3.  Tie-breaking 

 

3.1   When applications made within time have the same priority, priority as between them will 
be determined by time and date of application.  

 

 

4.  Enrolment process for school district children 
 

4.1 School district children who will be continuing at the same school or the related receiving 
school without a change of educational program are not required to apply. They will be 
automatically enrolled in the applicable educational program or school, subject to space 
availability and to meeting program requirements, unless transferred or withdrawn.  
Those applying first in their category will be given priority.  

 
4.2 Parents of school district children who are applying to transfer from one school in the 

district to another school in the district or to a different educational program may apply 
through the school of origin or to the school of choice (variance). 

 
It is expected that the school receiving the application will forward a copy of the application to 



 

Page 5 of 6 
 

the other school that is affected by the application.   

 

 

5.  Dates for Applications to Enroll and Enrolment  
 
5.1   Before 1st of February in each school year, the board will establish dates for submission of 

applications to enroll and for enrolment. 
The board may establish different dates for different grades, educational programs, 
schools, or categories of applicant.  
Applications to enroll and for enrollment (variance requests) should be submitted by March 
15 prior to the pending school year.  The board will give active consideration to the 
allocation of facility space and staff in an attempt to accommodate these requests.  This 
consideration is to be complete by May 1 with possible approval of requests at that time.   
Those non-approved requests and those requests received after March 15 will be 
considered on a space available basis on the first Wednesday of  September following the 
school opening.  

 

 
6.  Guarantee of educational program 
 
6.1 School district children who apply for enrolment in an educational program will be 

provided with an educational program in the district, unless a parent of the student 
consents to a placement outside the school district.  

 
 
7.  Commitment 
 
7.1   The district process shall encourage students (if of appropriate age) and their parents to 

jointly consider the student’s educational needs before requesting an assignment to a 
school other than the current school or the catchment area school. 

 
7.2   Applicants may apply for more than one educational program but may only be enrolled in 

one. When the applicant is offered and accepts enrolment in an educational program (in or 
out of the school district), applications for all other programs become invalid. 

 
7.3   The superintendent or designate is authorized to enter into reciprocal agreements with 

other school districts to review wait lists and enrolment information in order to enforce this 
policy. 

 
 
8.  Program Requirements 
 
Applicants for enrolment must meet all program requirements for the requested educational 
program. 



 

Page 6 of 6 
 

 
 

9.  Discretionary Acceptance: Suspended or Expelled Non-School District Children 
 

9.1   Enrolment applications from non-school district children may be refused if the child: 
(a) is under suspension from a BC public school or school district, or  
(b) has been refused an educational program by a BC public school board under s. 85(3) 

of the School Act for refusing to comply with the code of conduct and other rules and 
policies of the board or has failed to apply himself or herself to his or her studies. 

 

9.2   Such applications will be referred to the superintendent or designate for a decision on 
admission. Admissions may be made subject to terms and conditions.  
 

 
10. Communication 

 
Application periods and enrolment dates will be communicated to the school communities and 
to the community at large and may also be communicated to other communities within and 
outside the school district. 

 
11. Transportation 
 
The board does not provide transportation to accommodate requests to enroll students outside 
of the appropriate catchment area indicated by the parents address.  Exceptions to this policy 
will be considered on a space available basis on the board’s regularly scheduled buses. 
 



Annual Budget

School District No. 60 (Peace River North)

June 30, 2022

DRAFT - Not Finalized

June 18, 2021  10:12



School District No. 60 (Peace River North)
June 30, 2022

Table of Contents

Bylaw  ..........................................................................................................................................................................................................1

Annual Budget - Revenue and Expense - Statement 2  ..........................................................................................................................................2

Annual Budget - Changes in Net Financial Assets (Debt) - Statement 4  .............................................................................................................................................4

Annual Budget - Operating Revenue and Expense - Schedule 2  .......................................................................................................................................................5

Schedule 2A - Annual Budget - Schedule of Operating Revenue by Source  ..........................................................................................................................................................................................................6

Schedule 2B - Annual Budget - Schedule of Operating Expense by Object  ..........................................................................................................................................................................................................7

Schedule 2C - Annual Budget - Operating Expense by Function, Program and Object  ..........................................................................................................................................................................................................8

Annual Budget - Special Purpose Revenue and Expense - Schedule 3  ......................................................................................................10

Schedule 3A - Annual Budget - Changes in Special Purpose Funds  ..............................................................................................................................................11

Annual Budget - Capital Revenue and Expense - Schedule 4  ...............................................................................................................14

*NOTE - Statement 1, Statement 3, Statement 5, Schedule 1 and Schedules 4A - 4D are used for Financial Statement reporting only.

DRAFT - Not Finalized

June 18, 2021  10:12



A Bylaw of THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 60 (PEACE RIVER NORTH)

(called the ''Board'') to adopt the Annual Budget of the Board for the fiscal year 2021/2022 pursuant

to section 113 of the School Act , R.S.B.C., 1996, c. 412 as amended from time to time (called the "Act ").

1. Board has complied with the provisions of the Act respecting the Annual Budget

adopted by this bylaw.

2. This bylaw may be cited as School District No. 60 (Peace River North)

Annual Budget Bylaw for fiscal year 2021/2022.

3. The attached Statement 2 showing the estimated revenue and expense for the

2021/2022 fiscal year and the total budget bylaw amount of $85,020,719 for the 2021/2022 fiscal

year was prepared in accordance with the Act .

4. Statement 2, 4 and Schedules 2 to 4 are adopted as the Annual Budget of the Board

for the fiscal year 2021/2022.

READ A FIRST TIME THE 21st DAY OF JUNE, 2021;

READ A SECOND TIME THE 21st DAY OF JUNE, 2021;

READ A THIRD TIME, PASSED AND ADOPTED THE 21st DAY OF JUNE, 2021;

( Corporate Seal )

I HEREBY CERTIFY this to be a true original of School District No. 60 (Peace River North)

Annual Budget Bylaw 2021/2022, adopted by the Board the ______ DAY OF ___________________, 2021.

ANNUAL BUDGET BYLAW

Chairperson of the Board

Secretary Treasurer

Secretary Treasurer

DRAFT - Not Finalized

June 18, 2021  10:12



Statement 2

2022 2021 Amended

Annual Budget Annual Budget

Ministry Operating Grant Funded FTE's

School-Age 6,371.938                  6,249.625                  

Adult 29.125                       16.500                       

Other 1.880                         1.250                         

Total Ministry Operating Grant Funded FTE's 6,402.943                  6,267.375                  

Revenues $ $

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education 75,894,510                77,055,526                

Other 117,415                     84,400                       

Federal Grants 223,081                     242,752                     

Tuition 600,000                     246,165                     

Other Revenue 2,404,109                  2,971,093                  

Rentals and Leases 85,794                       85,794                       

Investment Income 120,000                     120,000                     

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 4,061,475                  3,418,006                  

Total Revenue 83,506,384                84,223,736                

Expenses

Instruction 62,378,993                63,660,220                

District Administration 2,588,396                  2,632,723                  

Operations and Maintenance 14,648,117                14,101,318                

Transportation and Housing 4,705,213                  4,495,532                  

Total Expense 84,320,719                84,889,793                

Net Revenue (Expense) (814,335)                   (666,057)                   

Budgeted Allocation (Retirement) of Surplus (Deficit) 2,265,649                  

Budgeted Surplus (Deficit), for the year (814,335)                   1,599,592                  

Budgeted Surplus (Deficit), for the year comprised of:

Operating Fund Surplus (Deficit) 393,600                     

Special Purpose Fund Surplus (Deficit)

Capital Fund Surplus (Deficit) (814,335)                   1,205,992                  

Budgeted Surplus (Deficit), for the year (814,335)                   1,599,592                  

School District No. 60 (Peace River North)
Annual Budget - Revenue and Expense

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Page 2

DRAFT - Not Finalized

June 18, 2021  10:12



Statement 2

2022 2021 Amended

Annual Budget Annual Budget

School District No. 60 (Peace River North)
Annual Budget - Revenue and Expense

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budget Bylaw Amount

Operating - Total Expense 70,625,574                68,837,427                

Operating - Tangible Capital Assets Purchased 700,000                     2,072,854                  

Special Purpose Funds - Total Expense 8,119,335                  11,466,938                

Capital Fund - Total Expense 5,575,810                  4,585,428                  

Total Budget Bylaw Amount 85,020,719                86,962,647                

Signature of the Chairperson of the Board of Education

Signature of the Superintendent

Signature of the Secretary Treasurer

Date Signed

Date Signed

Approved by the Board

Date Signed

DRAFT

Page 3

DRAFT - Not Finalized

June 18, 2021  10:12



Statement 4

2022 2021 Amended

Annual Budget Annual Budget

$ $

Surplus (Deficit) for the year (814,335)                   (666,057)                   

Effect of change in Tangible Capital Assets

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets

From Operating and Special Purpose Funds (700,000)                   (2,072,854)                

From Deferred Capital Revenue (3,374,552)                (5,132,961)                

Total Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (4,074,552)                (7,205,815)                

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 5,575,810                  4,585,428                  

Total Effect of change in Tangible Capital Assets 1,501,258                  (2,620,387)                

-                                -                                

(Increase) Decrease in Net Financial Assets (Debt) 686,923                     (3,286,444)                

School District No. 60 (Peace River North)
Annual Budget - Changes in Net Financial Assets (Debt)

Year Ended June 30, 2022

DRAFT - Not Finalized

June 18, 2021  10:12 Page 4



 Schedule 2

2022 2021 Amended

Annual Budget Annual Budget

$ $

Revenues

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education 69,248,130                67,252,176                

Other 117,415                     84,400                       

Tuition 600,000                     246,165                     

Other Revenue 1,154,235                  1,249,697                  

Rentals and Leases 85,794                       85,794                       

Investment Income 120,000                     120,000                     

Total Revenue 71,325,574                69,038,232                

Expenses

Instruction 54,953,950                52,692,354                

District Administration 2,588,396                  2,632,723                  

Operations and Maintenance 9,155,679                  9,759,696                  

Transportation and Housing 3,927,549                  3,752,654                  

Total Expense 70,625,574                68,837,427                

Net Revenue (Expense) 700,000                     200,805                     

Budgeted Prior Year Surplus Appropriation 2,265,649                  

Net Transfers (to) from other funds

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased (700,000)                   (2,072,854)                

Total Net Transfers (700,000)                   (2,072,854)                

Budgeted Surplus (Deficit), for the year -                                393,600                     

School District No. 60 (Peace River North)
Annual Budget - Operating Revenue and Expense

Year Ended June 30, 2022

DRAFT - Not Finalized

June 18, 2021  10:12 Page 5



Schedule 2A

2022 2021 Amended

Annual Budget Annual Budget

$ $

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education

Operating Grant, Ministry of Education 69,380,335                65,762,730                

ISC/LEA Recovery (929,640)                   (927,352)                   

Other Ministry of Education Grants

Pay Equity 241,350                     241,350                     

Funding for Graduated Adults 55,000                       32,857                       

Student Transportation Fund 425,785                     425,785                     

Support Staff Benefits Grant 67,113                       67,113                       

Teachers' Labour Settlement Funding 1,510,106                  

Early Career Mentorship Funding 125,000                     

FSA Funding 8,187                         8,187                         

Eqarly Learning Framework 2,400                         

Equity Scan Implementation 4,000                         

Total Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education 69,248,130                67,252,176                

Provincial Grants - Other 117,415                     84,400                       

Tuition

International and Out of Province Students 600,000                     246,165                     

Total Tuition 600,000                     246,165                     

Other Revenues

Funding from First Nations 929,640                     927,352                     

Miscellaneous

Miscellaneous 224,595                     322,345                     

Total Other Revenue 1,154,235                  1,249,697                  

Rentals and Leases 85,794                       85,794                       

Investment Income 120,000                     120,000                     

Total Operating Revenue 71,325,574                69,038,232                

School District No. 60 (Peace River North)
Annual Budget - Schedule of Operating Revenue by Source

Year Ended June 30, 2022

DRAFT - Not Finalized

June 18, 2021  10:12 Page 6



 Schedule 2B

2022 2021 Amended

Annual Budget Annual Budget

$ $

Salaries

Teachers 25,828,518                25,262,158                

Principals and Vice Principals 5,564,310                  5,397,595                  

Educational Assistants 4,227,825                  4,982,913                  

Support Staff 8,451,711                  7,737,480                  

Other Professionals 1,755,552                  1,705,859                  

Substitutes 1,619,541                  1,616,261                  

Total Salaries 47,447,457                46,702,266                

Employee Benefits 11,610,259                9,938,258                  

Total Salaries and Benefits 59,057,716                56,640,524                

Services and Supplies

Services 1,323,521                  1,530,220                  

Student Transportation 793,850                     309,651                     

Professional Development and Travel 797,092                     642,594                     

Rentals and Leases 25,250                       51,549                       

Dues and Fees 54,500                       49,911                       

Insurance 313,000                     265,602                     

Interest 11,830                       13,031                       

Supplies 6,644,071                  7,765,447                  

Utilities 1,604,744                  1,568,898                  

Total Services and Supplies 11,567,858                12,196,903                

Total Operating Expense 70,625,574                68,837,427                

School District No. 60 (Peace River North)
Annual Budget - Schedule of Operating Expense by Object

Year Ended June 30, 2022

DRAFT - Not Finalized

June 18, 2021  10:12 Page 7



Schedule 2CSchool District No. 60 (Peace River North)
Annual Budget - Operating Expense by Function, Program and Object

Principals and Educational Support Other

Teachers Vice Principals Assistants Staff Professionals Substitutes Total

Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries

$ $ $ $ $ $ $

1 Instruction

1.02 Regular Instruction 19,597,303          1,716,498            1,983,988            374,986               1,151,334            24,824,109          

1.03 Career Programs 202,394               68,042                 4,169                   55,114                 5,000                   334,719               

1.07 Library Services 750,985               19,928                 77,386                 848,299               

1.08 Counselling 870,879               870,879               

1.10 Special Education 3,200,164            438,939               3,614,960            59,433                 292,170               7,605,666            

1.30 English Language Learning 606,811               12,904                 619,715               

1.31 Indigenous Education 447,982               162,663               608,696               45,468                 55,636                 5,000                   1,325,445            

1.41 School Administration 2,810,280            520,773               3,331,053            

1.62 International and Out of Province Students 152,000               56,474                 20,355                 18,912                 5,000                   252,741               

Total Function 1 25,828,518          5,285,728            4,227,825            2,762,517            449,534               1,458,504            40,012,626          

4 District Administration

4.11 Educational Administration 278,582               285,220               563,802               

4.40 School District Governance 100,533               100,533               

4.41 Business Administration 110,641               647,620               758,261               

Total Function 4 -                           278,582               -                           110,641               1,033,373            -                           1,422,596            

5 Operations and Maintenance

5.41 Operations and Maintenance Administration 109,475               188,166               297,641               

5.50 Maintenance Operations 3,097,185            60,000                 3,157,185            

5.52 Maintenance of Grounds 594,699               594,699               

5.56 Utilities -                           

Total Function 5 -                           -                           -                           3,801,359            188,166               60,000                 4,049,525            

7 Transportation and Housing

7.41 Transportation and Housing Administration 84,479                 84,479                 

7.70 Student Transportation 1,777,194            101,037               1,878,231            

Total Function 7 -                           -                           -                           1,777,194            84,479                 101,037               1,962,710            

9 Debt Services

Total Function 9 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

Total Functions 1 - 9 25,828,518          5,564,310            4,227,825            8,451,711            1,755,552            1,619,541            47,447,457          

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Page 8

DRAFT - Not Finalized

June 18, 2021  10:12



Schedule 2CSchool District No. 60 (Peace River North)
Annual Budget - Operating Expense by Function, Program and Object

1 Instruction

1.02 Regular Instruction

1.03 Career Programs

1.07 Library Services

1.08 Counselling

1.10 Special Education

1.30 English Language Learning

1.31 Indigenous Education

1.41 School Administration

1.62 International and Out of Province Students

Total Function 1

4 District Administration

4.11 Educational Administration

4.40 School District Governance

4.41 Business Administration

Total Function 4

5 Operations and Maintenance

5.41 Operations and Maintenance Administration

5.50 Maintenance Operations

5.52 Maintenance of Grounds

5.56 Utilities

Total Function 5

7 Transportation and Housing

7.41 Transportation and Housing Administration

7.70 Student Transportation

Total Function 7

9 Debt Services

Total Function 9

Total Functions 1 - 9

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Total Employee Total Salaries Services and 2022 2021 Amended

Salaries Benefits and Benefits Supplies Annual Budget Annual Budget

$ $ $ $ $ $

24,824,109          5,947,069            30,771,178          3,313,257            34,084,435                33,242,403                

334,719               83,390                 418,109               45,151                 463,260                     407,384                     

848,299               193,568               1,041,867            129,500               1,171,367                  1,136,912                  

870,879               188,136               1,059,015            3,088                   1,062,103                  866,719                     

7,605,666            2,251,263            9,856,929            1,070,089            10,927,018                10,478,601                

619,715               130,221               749,936               19,881                 769,817                     769,595                     

1,325,445            316,872               1,642,317            233,998               1,876,315                  1,778,175                  

3,331,053            734,107               4,065,160            7,776                   4,072,936                  3,800,472                  

252,741               67,958                 320,699               206,000               526,699                     212,093                     

40,012,626          9,912,584            49,925,210          5,028,740            54,953,950                52,692,354                

563,802               124,037               687,839               166,217               854,056                     831,191                     

100,533               6,028                   106,561               180,449               287,010                     187,699                     

758,261               172,350               930,611               516,719               1,447,330                  1,613,833                  

1,422,596            302,415               1,725,011            863,385               2,588,396                  2,632,723                  

297,641               62,504                 360,145               300,616               660,761                     586,697                     

3,157,185            755,621               3,912,806            1,811,156            5,723,962                  6,480,732                  

594,699               118,452               713,151               260,000               973,151                     929,965                     

-                           -                           1,797,805            1,797,805                  1,762,302                  

4,049,525            936,577               4,986,102            4,169,577            9,155,679                  9,759,696                  

84,479                 17,042                 101,521               20,400                 121,921                     115,759                     

1,878,231            441,641               2,319,872            1,485,756            3,805,628                  3,636,895                  

1,962,710            458,683               2,421,393            1,506,156            3,927,549                  3,752,654                  

-                           -                           -                           -                           -                                -                                

47,447,457          11,610,259          59,057,716          11,567,858          70,625,574                68,837,427                

Page 9

DRAFT - Not Finalized

June 18, 2021  10:12



Schedule 3

2022 2021 Amended

Annual Budget Annual Budget

$ $

Revenues

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education 6,646,380                  9,803,350                  

Federal Grants 223,081                     242,752                     

Other Revenue 1,249,874                  1,420,836                  

Total Revenue 8,119,335                  11,466,938                

Expenses

Instruction 7,425,043                  10,967,866                

Operations and Maintenance 580,707                     465,540                     

Transportation and Housing 113,585                     33,532                       

Total Expense 8,119,335                  11,466,938                

Budgeted Surplus (Deficit), for the year -                                -                                

School District No. 60 (Peace River North)
Annual Budget - Special Purpose Revenue and Expense

Year Ended June 30, 2022

DRAFT - Not Finalized

June 18, 2021  10:12 Page 10



Schedule  3ASchool District No. 60 (Peace River North)
Annual Budget - Changes in Special Purpose Funds

Annual Learning Scholarships School Ready, Classroom

Facility Improvement and Generated Strong Set, Enhancement

Grant Fund Bursaries Funds Start Learn OLEP CommunityLINK Fund - Overhead

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year 281,743            20,336              142,673            1,858,565         15,056              38,166              28,285              242,214                

Add: Restricted Grants

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education 298,964            241,562            148,000            46,550              109,359            583,311                365,296              

Federal Grants

Other 1,015,888         

298,964            241,562            -                        1,015,888         148,000            46,550              109,359            583,311                365,296              

Less: Allocated to Revenue 580,707            261,898            -                        1,015,888         163,056            84,716              137,644            825,525                365,296              

Deferred Revenue, end of year -                        -                        142,673            1,858,565         -                        -                        -                        -                            -                          

Revenues

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education 580,707            261,898            163,056            84,716              137,644            825,525                365,296              

Federal Grants

Other Revenue 1,015,888         

580,707            261,898            -                        1,015,888         163,056            84,716              137,644            825,525                365,296              

Expenses

Salaries

Teachers 2,087                22,955              161,833                

Principals and Vice Principals 29,563              22,861              75,313                  164,766              

Educational Assistants 191,185            101,450            500                   2,089                193,576                

Support Staff 68,887                  40,823                

Other Professionals 114,482            82,995                

Substitutes 11,753              2,500                    

114,482            191,185            -                        -                        131,013            2,587                59,658              502,109                288,584              

Employee Benefits 23,097              70,713              7,015                636                   8,900                123,416                76,712                

Services and Supplies 443,128            -                        1,015,888         25,028              81,493              69,086              200,000                

580,707            261,898            -                        1,015,888         163,056            84,716              137,644            825,525                365,296              

Net Revenue (Expense) -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                            -                          

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Page 11
DRAFT - Not Finalized

June 18, 2021  10:12



Schedule  3ASchool District No. 60 (Peace River North)
Annual Budget - Changes in Special Purpose Funds

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year

Add: Restricted Grants

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education

Federal Grants

Other

Less: Allocated to Revenue

Deferred Revenue, end of year

Revenues

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education

Federal Grants

Other Revenue

Expenses

Salaries

Teachers

Principals and Vice Principals

Educational Assistants

Support Staff

Other Professionals

Substitutes

Employee Benefits

Services and Supplies

Net Revenue (Expense)

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Classroom First Nation Mental Changing Safe Return Federal Safe

Enhancement Student Health Results for to Return to

Fund - Staffing Transportation in Schools Young Children School Grant Class Fund SWIS EFAP Miscellaneous

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

113,585                23,301                 23,752             320,000            30,000              8,015                127,888            

3,746,900            

223,081            

36,000              233,212            

3,746,900            -                           -                           -                       -                        -                        223,081            36,000              233,212            

3,746,900            113,585                23,301                 23,752             -                        320,000            223,081            36,000              197,986            

-                           -                           -                           -                       -                        -                        30,000              8,015                163,114            

3,746,900            113,585                23,301                 23,752             -                        320,000            

223,081            

36,000              197,986            

3,746,900            113,585                23,301                 23,752             -                        320,000            223,081            36,000              197,986            

3,021,694            5,100                   

13,076                 13,822             42,356              

31,047              

90,000              127,385            87,290              

2,500               

3,021,694            -                           18,176                 16,322             -                        90,000              169,741            -                        118,337            

725,206               5,125                   2,903               30,000              38,340              29,649              

113,585                4,527               200,000            15,000              36,000              50,000              

3,746,900            113,585                23,301                 23,752             -                        320,000            223,081            36,000              197,986            

-                           -                           -                           -                       -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Page 12
DRAFT - Not Finalized

June 18, 2021  10:12



Schedule  3ASchool District No. 60 (Peace River North)
Annual Budget - Changes in Special Purpose Funds

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year

Add: Restricted Grants

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education

Federal Grants

Other

Less: Allocated to Revenue

Deferred Revenue, end of year

Revenues

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education

Federal Grants

Other Revenue

Expenses

Salaries

Teachers

Principals and Vice Principals

Educational Assistants

Support Staff

Other Professionals

Substitutes

Employee Benefits

Services and Supplies

Net Revenue (Expense)

Year Ended June 30, 2022

TOTAL

$

3,273,579         

5,539,942         

223,081            

1,285,100         

7,048,123         

8,119,335         

2,202,367         

6,646,380         

223,081            

1,249,874         

8,119,335         

3,213,669         

361,757            

519,847            

414,385            

197,477            

16,753              

4,723,888         

1,141,712         

2,253,735         

8,119,335         

-                        

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Page 13
DRAFT - Not Finalized

June 18, 2021  10:12



Schedule 4

Invested in Tangible Local Fund 2021 Amended

Capital Assets Capital Balance Annual Budget

$ $ $ $

Revenues

Other Revenue -                           300,560                 

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 4,061,475                   4,061,475            3,418,006              

Total Revenue 4,061,475                   -                           4,061,475            3,718,566              

Expenses

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets

Operations and Maintenance 4,911,731                   4,911,731            3,876,082              

Transportation and Housing 664,079                      664,079               709,346                 

Total Expense 5,575,810                   -                           5,575,810            4,585,428              

Net Revenue (Expense) (1,514,335)                  -                           (1,514,335)           (866,862)                

Net Transfers (to) from other funds

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased 700,000                      700,000               2,072,854              

Total Net Transfers 700,000                      -                           700,000               2,072,854              

Other Adjustments to Fund Balances

Total Other Adjustments to Fund Balances -                                  -                           -                           

Budgeted Surplus (Deficit), for the year (814,335)                     -                           (814,335)              1,205,992              

2022 Annual Budget

School District No. 60 (Peace River North)
Annual Budget - Capital Revenue and Expense

Year Ended June 30, 2022

DRAFT - Not Finalized

June 18, 2021  10:12 Page 14



PRELIMINARY ANNUAL BUDGET
2021/22



AGENDA

1. Overview of Preliminary 2021/22 Ministry of Education 
Funding  and Enrolment projections

2. Overview of Other Operating Revenues 2021/22
3. Summary of Operating Expenditures by type - Salaries, 

Benefits, and Supplies
4. Summary of Operating Expenditures by function -

Instruction, Admin, Operations, and Transportation
5. Review of Schedule 3A – Special Purpose Funds
6. Review of Schedule 2 - Operating Revenue and Expense
7. Review of Statement 2 - Budget Bylaw



OPERATING REVENUES

97%

Total Operating Revenue
(Schedule 2)

Ministry of Education Grants

International & AB Tuition

Misc. Income including Rentals

Investment Income



COMPONENTS OF MINISTRY
OF EDUCATION FUNDING

Enrolment
FTE 2021-22 Prelim 2020-21 Amended Difference
School Age 6,371.938 6,249.625 122.313 
Adult 29.125 16.50 12.625 
Other 1.880 1.25 0.630 
Total FTE 6,402.943 6,267.375 135.568

Components of Ministry of Education Funding Include:
Funding Type 2021-22 Prelim 2020-21 Amended Difference
Enrolment based 47,653,096 45,037,990           2,615,106
Unique Student Needs:

Special Education 6,779,290 5,997,900 781,390 
English Language Learning 713,250 731,120 (17,870) 
Aboriginal Education 1,801,315 1,693,500 107,815     
Adult Education 56,588                  31,350                  25,238
Salary Differential 678,556                668,984 9,572         
Supplement for Enrolment Decline 114,258 (114,258)
Funding Protection 396,716 (396,716)
Unique Geographic Factors 9,884,448 9,487,239 397,2019 
BC Education Plan 54,267                55,090 (823)      
Equity of Opportunity Supplement 256,803 220,138 36,665
Est. Distributed Learning (Feb & May) 1,496,002 1,324,145 171,857
Summer Learning 6,720 4,300 2,420
Total Ministry Funding 69,380,335 65,762,730 3,617,605



OPERATING REVENUES
Revenues (Schedule 2A) 2021-22 Prelim 2020-21 Amended Difference

Pr
ov

in
ci

al
 G

ra
nt

s
Operating Grants 69,380,335 65,762,730 3,617,605 
Pay Equity 241,350 241,350 -
Graduated Adults Funding 55,000                            32,857 22,143
Transportation Funding 425,785 425,785 -
FSA Funding 8,187 8,187 -
Support Staff Benefits Grant 67,113 67,113 -
Early Learning Framework 2,400             (2,400)
Teachers’ Labour Settlement 1,510,106 (1,510,106)

Early Career Mentorship 125,000 (125,000)

Equity Scan Implementation 4,000 (4,000)

MCFD - School Age Therapy 117,415                84,400                  33,015   

Fe
es

International and Out of Province 600,000                 246,165 353,835

M
is

c.

Miscellaneous Income 224,595 322,345 (97,750) 
Rental and Leases 85,794 85,794 -

Investment Income 120,000 120,000 -
Total Revenue 71,325,574 69,038,232 2,287,342 



OPERATING EXPENSES

84.09 %

15.91%

Operating Expenses by Object
(Schedule 2B)

Salaries & Benefits

Services & Supplies



OPERATING EXPENSES

Operating Expenses by Object

Object
2021/22 

Prelim
2020/21 

Amended
Salaries 47,447,457 67.56% 46,702,266 67.84%
Benefits 11,610,259 16.53% 9,938,258 14.44%
Salaries & Benefits 59,057,716 84.09% 56,640,524 82.28%
Services & Supplies 11,567,858 16.21% 12,196,903 17.72%

70,625,574 68,837,427



OPERATING EXPENSES

78.01%

3.67%

12.74%
5.58%

Operating Expense by Function
(Schedule 2C)

Instruction (1)
District Administration (4)
Operations & Maintenance (5)
Transportation & Housing (7)



OPERATING EXPENSES

Operating Expenses by Function

Function
2021/22 

Prelim
2020/21 

Amended

Instruction (1) 54,953,950 78.01% 52,692,354 76.55%

District Administration (4) 2,588,396 3.67% 2,632,723 3.82%

Operations & Maintenance (5) 9,155,679 12.74% 9,759,696 14.18%

Transportation & Housing (7) 3,927,549 5.58% 3,752,654 5.45%

70,625,574 68,837,427



SP
EC

IA
L 

PU
RP

O
SE

 F
U

N
DS

SC
H

ED
U

LE
 3

A
Special Purpose Funds – Expenses 2021/22

Pl
an

ne
d 

Sp
en

di
ng

Annual Facility Grant 580,707
Learning Improvement Fund 261,898
School Generated Funds 1,015,888
Strong Start 163,056
Ready Set Learn 84716
OLEP 137,644
Community Links 825,525
CEF - Overhead 365,296
CEF - Staffing 3,746,900
First Nation Student Transportation 113,585
Mental Health in Schools 23,301
Changing Young Results in Young 
Children 23,752
Federal Safe Return to Class Fund 320,000
SWIS 223,081
EFAP 36,000
Misc. 197,986

$8,119,335

Special Purpose Fund - Revenue 2021/22
Special Purpose Fund Revenue $7,048,123
Revenue plus application of Reserves $8,119,335



SCHEDULE 2 SUMMARY
HIGHLIGHTS BASED ON ENROLMENT

Schedule 2 
2021/22 

Prelim
2020/21 

Amended
Total Revenue 71,325,574 69,038,232 
Total Expenses 70,625,574 68,837,427 
Net Revenue (Expense) 700,000 200,805       
Budgeted Prior Years Surplus Appropriation - 2,265,649 

Net Transfers (Tangible Capital Assets) (700,000) (2,072,854)

Budgeted Surplus (Deficit), for the year - 393,600                    

The Board has been able to balance their budget based on 
enrolment projections and all the resources provided. 
Board reserves were required to balance this budget.



BUDGET BYLAW
STATEMENT 2

$70,625,574

$700,000

$8,119,335
$5,575,810

Preliminary Budget Bylaw 2021/22
Total = $82,818,607

The Total Operating Expense from
Schedule 2
The Tangible Capital Assets Purchased
from Schedule 2
The Special Purpose Fund Expenses from
Schedule 3
The Capital Fund Expenses from
Schedule 4



Capital Plan Bylaw  March 2019 
 

CAPITAL BYLAW NO. 2021/22-CPSD60-01 
CAPITAL PLAN 2021/22 

 
WHEREAS in accordance with section 142 of the School Act, the Board of Education of School District 
No. 60 (Peace River North) has submitted a capital plan to the Minister of Education (hereinafter called 
the "Minister") and the Minister has approved the capital plan or has approved a capital plan with 
modifications, 
 
NOW THEREFORE in accordance with section 143 of the School Act, the Board has prepared this 
Capital Bylaw and agrees to do the following: 
 

(a) Authorize the Secretary-Treasurer to execute a capital project funding agreement(s) related to the 
capital project(s) contemplated by the capital plan or the capital plan with modifications; 

(b) Upon ministerial approval to proceed, commence the capital project(s) and proceed diligently 
and use its best efforts to complete each capital project substantially as directed by the Minister; 

(c) Observe and comply with any order, regulation, or policy of the Minister as may be applicable to 
the Board or the capital project(s); and, 

(d) Maintain proper books of account, and other information and documents with respect to the 
affairs of the capital project(s), as may be prescribed by the Minister. 

 
NOW THEREFORE the Board enacts as follows: 
 

1. The Capital Bylaw of the Board for the 2021/22 Capital Plan as approved by the Minister, to 
include the supported capital project(s) specified in the letter addressed to the Secretary-
Treasurer and Superintendent, dated May 11, 2021, is hereby adopted. 

 
2. This Capital Bylaw may be cited as School District 60 (Peace River North) Capital Bylaw No. 

2021/22-CPSD60-01. 
 
READ A FIRST TIME THE 21st DAY OF June 2021; 
READ A SECOND TIME THE 21st DAY OF June 2021; 
READ A THIRD TIME, PASSED THE 21st DAY OF June 2021. 
 
 
 _________________________________ 
 Board Chair 
  
 
 _________________________________ 
 Secretary-Treasurer 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY this to be a true and original School District 60 (Peace River North) Capital Bylaw No. 
2021/22-CPSD60-01 adopted by the Board the 21st day OF June 2021. 
 
 
 _________________________________ 
 Secretary-Treasurer 






	2021-06-21 Regular Action Items
	2021-06-21 REGULAR AGENDA
	REGULAR MEETING

	R 8.1 BAA Course_Role-Playing Games 10
	R 8.1 BAA Course_Role-Playing Games 11
	R 8.1 BAA Course_Role-Playing Games 12
	R 8.1 End of Year Assessments Spring 2021
	R 8.1 Post of Responsibility Change for May-June 2021
	R 8.1 Seamless Day Kindergarten Pilot PowerPoint, Spring 2021
	��Seamless Day Kindergarten Pilots in BC Schools, 2021�Maureen Dockendorf:  BC Ministry of Education, Early Care and Learning Consultant�Photos are from the SD 53 Seamless Day Educator Team and reflect the context of the learning community�Additional photos are from the BC Early Learning Framework, and ‘Unsplash’�
	BC Government is creating a universally accessible, quality early care and learning system and is moving responsibility for child care to the Ministry of Education. �
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Seamless Day Kindergarten Pilot …
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	�����������Seamless Day Educator Team Collaborative Planning��25 minutes each week is built in for the Educator Team to meet and plan���The Educator Team continually engages in the BC Early Learning Framework practices of:��-collaborative dialogue��-pedagogy of listening�� -pedagogical narration��-critical reflection inviting comments, questions, and interpretations��What have we noticed?�What do we wonder?�What have we learned?�Where to next?�� ��
	Seamless Day Kindergarten Pilot offers before and after school care option with seamless transitions for children and families …
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15

	R 8.1 Seamless Day Kindergarten Pilot Summary
	R 8.1 Workforce Report
	R 9.3 2021-06-09 Policy Committee Meeting Notes
	R 9.3a 4035 Public Interest Disclosure Act (PIDA)
	R 9.3b 1003 School Board Meeting Delegations & Form
	R 9.3c 1001 School Board Duties and Authority
	R 9.3d 1002 Board Member Authority
	R 9.3e 1001 Roles and Responsibilities of the Board and Trustees
	R 9.3f 1010 Code of Ethics
	R 9.3g 2001 School Fees
	Publication of School Fees:
	Accounting:
	Extra-Curricular Activities:
	Policy
	ESTABLISHMENT OF SCHOOL FEES
	PUBLICATION OF SCHOOL FEES
	ALTERNATE PAYMENT
	ACCOUNTING
	EXTRA-CURRICULAR ACTIVITIES

	R 9.3h 2004 School Admission & Choice.doc
	2.  Determination of Available Space and Facilities
	3.  Tie-breaking
	4.  Enrolment process for school district children
	5.  Dates for Applications to Enroll and Enrolment

	6.  Guarantee of educational program
	7.  Commitment

	8.  Program Requirements
	9.  Discretionary Acceptance: Suspended or Expelled Non-School District Children
	10. Communication
	11. Transportation


	R 11.0 Annual Budget 2021-2022
	R 11.0 Annual Budget Presentation 2021-22
	�Preliminary Annual Budget�2021/22
	Agenda
	Operating Revenues
	Components of Ministry�of Education Funding
	Operating Revenues
	Operating Expenses
	Operating Expenses
	Operating Expenses
	Operating Expenses
	Special Purpose funds�Schedule 3A
	Schedule 2 summary�highlights based on enrolment
	Budget bylaw�statement 2

	R 12.0 2021-22 Capital Plan Bylaw
	R 13.0 2022-2023 Capital Plan Call for Projects
	R 14.0 Annual Facilities Grant Submission

